POLICE DEPARTMENT AGREEMENT

ORIGINAL

By and Between

CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON

And

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 760

JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT	3
ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION	3
ARTICLE 3 - UNION SECURITY AND DUES CHECK-OFF	3
ARTICLE 4 - RIGHTS OF PARTIES	4
ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITIONS OF EMPLOYEES	4
ARTICLE 6 - SENIORITY	
ARTICLE 7 - DEFINED LEAVES	6
ARTICLE 8 - COMPENSATION FOR WITNESS OR JURY DUTY	7
ARTICLE 9 - HOURS OF WORK - OVERTIME	7
ARTICLE 10 - CLASSIFICATIONS - WAGE RATES - OTHER PROVISIONS	9
ARTICLE 11 - PAY ARRANGEMENTS	
ARTICLE 12 - ANNUAL LEAVE	10
ARTICLE 13 - PARTIES RESPONSIBILITIES	11
ARTICLE 14 - RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION-INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE-OAS	SI 12
ARTICLE 15 - LIABILITY INSURANCE	12
ARTICLE 16 - HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PROGRAMS	12
ARTICLE 17 - LIFE - AD&D PLAN - SECTION 125 PLAN - VEBA III PLAN	
ARTICLE 18 - REMITTANCE FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS	14
ARTICLE 19 - FRINGE BENEFIT BOOKLETS & SELF-PREMIUM PAYMENTS	
ARTICLE 20 - TRUST FUND DELINQUENCIES	
ARTICLE 21 - ACCEPTANCE OF TRUSTS	
ARTICLE 22 - DISCIPLINE-DISCHARGE-SUSPENSION-WRITTEN WARNING NOTICE	14
ARTICLE 23 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 24 - UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT	
ARTICLE 25 - EDUCATIONAL AND LONGEVITY INCENTIVE	
ARTICLE 26 UNION ACTIVITY	
ARTICLE 27 - GENERAL PROVISIONS	
ARTICLE 28 - PERSONNEL FILES	
ARTICLE 29 – NO STRIKE – NO LOCK OUT	
ARTICLE 30 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	20
ARTICLE 31 - TERM OF AGREEMENT	21
APPENDIX "A" - LINE/PATROL OFFICERS	22
APPENDIX "B" - MISCELLANEOUS POLICE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES	
Memorandum of Understanding (originally signed 3.11.14)	
Memorandum of Understanding Policy for Catastrophic Leave/Illness	
Memorandum of Understanding (originally signed 1.21.14)	26

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer," and TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 760, the certified collective bargaining representative, hereinafter referred to as the "Union," for the purpose of fixing the wages, hours and working conditions affecting the employees.

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

2.1 The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative of all full time, regular part time and temporary employees in the City's Police Department with the exception of the Deputy Chief and the Chief of Police.

ARTICLE 3 - UNION SECURITY AND DUES CHECK-OFF

- 3.1 Employees of the Employer covered by this Agreement may, following the beginning of such employment join the Union.
- 3.1.1 The Union agrees to represent all employees within the bargaining unit without regard to Union membership. The Union shall provide the Employer with thirty (30) calendar days' notice of any change in the dues structure and/or the initiation fee structure
- 3.1.2 The Union and the employee may enter into an agreement to provide for a division of the costs incurred, should the employee request the Union's assistance in pursuing a grievance on the employee's behalf. If such employee pursuant to this Section requests the Union to use the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure on his behalf, the Union is authorized to charge the employee for the reasonable cost of using such procedure.
- 3.2 When the Employer hires a new employee, the Employer shall, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of employment, notify the Union in writing giving the name, social security number, hire date, address, and classification of the employee hired. The Employer will inform new, transferred, promoted, or demoted employees in writing prior to appointment into positions included in the bargaining unit(s) of the Union's exclusive representation status. The Employer will furnish the employees appointed into bargaining unit positions membership materials supplied by the Union. The Employer will inform employees in writing if they are subsequently appointed to a position that is not in a bargaining unit. Per statute, Union representatives shall be given thirty minutes paid time with each new employee to discuss union membership.

3.3 Dues Cancellation

. .

An employee may cancel payroll deduction of dues by written notice to the Employer and the Union. The cancellation will become effective on the second payroll after receipt of the notice.

3.4 When provided a "voluntary check-off" authorization in the form furnished by the Union and signed by an employee, the Employer agrees to deduct from the employee's pay, the Union's applicable dues, as prescribed in the "voluntary check-off" form. The full amount of monies so deducted by the Employer shall be promptly forwarded to the Union by check along with an alphabetized list showing

names and amounts deducted from each employee. The Union agrees to defend and hold the Employer harmless against all suits, orders or judgments brought or issued which may arise from the Employer making a good faith effort to administer this section.

ARTICLE 4 - RIGHTS OF PARTIES

- 4.1 Except as limited by the provisions of this Agreement, the Employer shall retain all rights, powers, functions, and authority vested in management by law, custom, practice and tradition, to manage and direct City in all of its various aspects, and to manage and direct its employees, including but not limited to the following: to operate and manage all manpower, facilities, and equipment; to establish programs and objectives; to establish and modify the organizational structure; to determine the utilization of technology; to select, direct, discipline, and determine the number of personnel; to establish work schedules and to perform any inherent managerial function not specifically limited by this Agreement. Whatever rights the Employer has retained pursuant to applicable law, rule, or regulation, shall not be exercised in a manner which conflicts with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 4.2 Union: The Union does not waive any right the Union has under applicable State Laws including but not limited to the right to require the City to bargain collectively concerning any subject matter held by State Laws to be mandatory which is not otherwise covered by this Agreement.
- 4.3 Employee Rights: All employees shall be entitled to and afforded the rights common to any citizen, regardless of occupational position. These rights shall include but are not limited to: The employee shall be granted the opportunity to contact and consult with an attorney of his own choosing, or a representative of the Union, before and/or during any investigative interview. The employee shall not be subjected to any offensive language or public humiliation, nor shall the employee subject the Employer to any offensive language or public humiliation.

No employee shall be required to unwillingly submit to a polygraph test or to unwillingly answer questions for which the employee might otherwise properly invoke the protections of any Constitutional Amendment against self-incrimination.

ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITIONS OF EMPLOYEES

- 8.1 Regular Part-Time Employee: A Regular Part Time employee is one who is authorized by the City Council, has served his probationary period, who may work less than forty (40) hours per week, and will be paid not less than the wage rate as set forth in this contract for the type of work performed. A regular part time employee working eighty (80) hours per month or more, is entitled to accrue all benefits and conditions as set forth in this Agreement, upon a pro-rata basis.
- 5.2 Regular Full-time Employees: A Regular Full Time employee is one who has been approved by the Civil Service Commission, has served his probationary period, is employed on a full time basis of forty (40) hours per week, is paid the wage rate for the type of work performed based upon his years of service, and who accrues the full benefits and conditions of this Agreement.
- 5.3 Probationary Employee: A probationary employee shall be defined as any new hire who has not completed two thousand eighty (2080) straight time compensable hours of service with the Employer since their satisfactory graduation from the Basic Law Enforcement Academy (BLEA).

- 5.4 Confidential Employee: A regular employee who is performing bargaining unit work and is engaged in, but not limited to, work that may need to be held confidential from other bargaining unit employees. A confidential employee will be under the direct authority of the Mayor or Mayor's designee.
- 5.4.1 The Union and Confidential employees represented herein recognize that inclusion of the Confidential employees in the same Teamster Local as the Non-Confidential employees shall not inhibit, restrain, or in any way adversely affect the performance of the duties of the confidentials including, but not limited to, the duty of working closely with management of the City, the duty of recommending discipline of other members of the same union, and the duty of not disclosing information which is confidential management information.
- 5.5 Temporary labor may be used but may not be used to indefinitely fill positions currently held by regular employees. At no time shall a bargaining unit member suffer a reduction in hours to less than forty (40) when temporary labor is used. The temporary labor shall only be used in the dispatch/clerical position and shall be paid according to the pay scale in appendix B based on experience. Temporary labor may pay union dues but not the initiation fee until they become a regular employee.

ARTICLE 6 - SENIORITY

- 6.1 No employee shall acquire seniority until he has become a regular full-time or regular part-time employee under this Agreement. Said regular employee is one who has successfully completed his probationary period and has been recommended by the Chief of Police and been approved by the Selah Civil Service Commission.
- 6.2 The lists of employees arranged in order of departmental seniority with the Employer shall be given to the Union on or before March 1st of each year upon request by the Union. Should more than one employee have the same hire date, the individuals involved will determine seniority by use of their civil service examination ranking. Any controversy over the seniority standing of any employee on this list shall be handled as a grievance for settlement.
- 6.3 The seniority of an employee shall be considered broken, all rights forfeited, and there is no obligation under this Agreement to rehire when the employee:
- 6.3.1 voluntarily leaves the service of the Employer
- 6.3.2 is discharged for just cause
- 6.3.3 is laid off for a period in excess of eighteen (18) consecutive calendar months.
- 6.4 Seniority with the Employer shall prevail in case of layoff and recall. The last employee hired shall be the first (1st) employee laid off and the last employee laid off shall be the first (1st) employee rehired. If there is any question of any senior employee being capable to perform the work available in the case of layoff and recall, the Union may require the Employer to show just cause for not recalling or laying off such senior employee.
- 6.5 The employee who is most qualified for an available promotion or open position by virtue of training, experience, performance, ability and testing shall fill the available position. When qualifications are substantially equal between applicants for said position, the employee with the highest seniority standing will fill said position.

6.6 Trial Service: An employee who is promoted to a higher rank or position within the bargaining unit shall serve a trial period not to exceed one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the date of such promotion or transfer. Within this trial period, if the promoted or transferred employee declines the job or the Employer deems the employee to be unsuited for the job, the employee shall revert to his former position without prejudice. Any employee promoted to a position outside the bargaining unit, shall have a seniority date computed on the basis of time previously served and positions included in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 7 - DEFINED LEAVES

- 7.1 <u>Sick Leave</u>: Employees shall accrue one (1) day sick leave for each month of employment and may accumulate without limit but cannot be taken as annual leave nor compensated for in money or other means at any time unless specified herein.
- 7.1.1 Less than full-time eligible employees shall accumulate sick leave on a pro-rata basis not to exceed twelve (12) working days per year, based upon the employee's assigned hours.
- 7.1.2 A deduction of one (1) working day of sick leave credit shall be made for each full day's absence due to the following reasons: Personal illness, injury, or quarantine of an employee by a qualified physician. The rate of sick leave pay shall be the same per day as that paid the employee per working day.
- 7.1.3 Sick Leave Incentive Program: Effective January 1, 2000 employees will start accruing sick leave and upon retirement (which shall be defined as immediately receiving PERS or LEOFF payments) may exercise an option to convert unused sick leave accumulated at a rate equal to one (1) full days monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days accrued leave to a maximum of 180 days converted to a maximum of 45 days pay. Such pay may be placed into the employees VEBA account (see section 17.4) or similar fund as provided by the City under applicable tax rules.
- 7.2 If unable to report to work because of illness or injury, the employee shall report his reason for absence to his immediate supervisor prior to his scheduled work shift, unless the exigency of the circumstances dictates otherwise. If the employee is absent from work three (3) days or more, a doctor's certificate may be required upon his return to work.
- 7.3 Any employee found to have abused the provisions of a defined leave privilege by falsification or misrepresentation may be subject to disciplinary action.
- 7.4 <u>Workmen's Compensation</u>: Any employee who is eligible for State Industrial Compensation for time off because of an on-the-job injury shall be paid sick leave. Any State Industrial benefit received by the employee shall be endorsed to the Employer. Upon receipt of this benefit by the Employer, the employee shall be credited with sick leave on a pro-rated basis of the State Industrial benefit to the original amount of sick leave taken.
- 7.5 <u>Bereavement Leave</u>: An employee shall be allowed up to ten (10) working days of absence with full pay when arranging for and/or attending the funeral of a member of his immediate family. Immediate family shall be defined as a spouse, child, parent, brother, sister, grandparent or grandchild of

the employee or of his spouse, or a more distant relative if living in the same household. Two additional days off may be granted by the Chief of Police in cases where the employee needs to travel out of town or where special circumstances warrant. All bereavement days shall be deducted from the employee's sick leave bank.

- 7.6 Any employee using sick leave for 3 or more consecutive regularly scheduled work days or who knows they will need accommodation for intermittent scheduling due to qualifying medical reasons shall report such need to their Department Head. The Human Resource Manager should be notified by the Department Head. This leave shall be provided in accordance with Washington's Family Care Act (FCA), Washington's Family Leave Act, and the Federal Family Medical Leave Act.
- 7.7 Employees may use sick leave when caring for dependent children under the age of 18 where the employee's presence is necessary due to an illness.
- 7.8 <u>Military Leave</u>: A regular employee who is an active member of any organized reserve of Armed Forces of the United States, shall be entitled to and granted a military leave of absence from his employment for a period not exceeding twenty-one (21) calendar days during each calendar year. Such leave shall be granted in order that the employee may take part in active training duty in such manner and at such time as he may be ordered to active training duty. Such military leave shall be in addition to any vacation or sick leave to which the employee might otherwise be entitled, and shall not involve any loss of efficiency rating, privileges, or pay. During the period of military leave, the employee shall receive his normal pay.
- 7.9 <u>Leaves of Absence</u>: A leave of absence is an approved absence, including medical leave of absence, from employment without pay and without loss of seniority. The Employer may grant a leave of absence for a period of up to twelve (12) calendar months. This period may be extended by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union. Such leaves shall be in writing with a copy to the Union. Requests for leave renewal will be granted at the discretion of the Employer. The request must be in writing and must be submitted sixty (60) calendar days prior to effective date.

ARTICLE 8 - COMPENSATION FOR WITNESS OR JURY DUTY

8.1 When a regular employee covered by this Agreement is summoned for Jury Duty or is subpoenaed as a witness in any matter during or arising out of his employment, in any municipal, county, state or federal court, he shall advise the Employer upon receipt of such call or subpoena, and if taken from his work for such service, shall be reimbursed as provided herein for any loss of wages while actually performing such service; providing he remits to the Employer his properly endorsed checks. Transportation allowance paid by the court shall not be included to compute the amount received for such service. Should an employee report for such service and be excused for the balance of that day, he shall report as soon as possible to his Employer for the purpose of working the balance of his special (jury duty or subpoenaed witness) shift. This special shift shall be consistent with the court appointed time.

ARTICLE 9 - HOURS OF WORK - OVERTIME

9.1 5/8's: Eight (8) consecutive hours, inclusive of meal and rest periods totaling one (1) hour, shall constitute a work day. Five (5) consecutive days, Monday through Sunday, shall constitute a work week or 4/10's: Ten (10) consecutive hours, inclusive of meal and rest periods totaling one and one quarter (1

1/4) hours, shall constitute a work day. Four (4) consecutive days, Monday through Sunday shall constitute a work week. The Police Clerk position shall be scheduled for an eight (8) hour shift with a one-hour, unpaid lunch break. With approval of the Police Chief, the Police Clerk may remain on site and work during their lunch period for a total of eight (8) hours worked, inclusive of lunch. In the case of ten hour and forty (10.40) shifts for Patrol officers, the employer may alter the work week in accordance with section 7(k) of the FLSA for commissioned personnel of the Police Department. Hours worked in excess of ten hours and forty minutes (10.40) in a day or one hundred sixty (160) hours in a twenty-eight-day work period, shall be compensated at one- and one-half times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate. The twenty-eight-day work period shall consist of fifteen (15) scheduled work days of ten hours and forty minutes (10.40) per day.

Individuals working this schedule shall be on a monthly salary, below shows how the salary is calculated.

Example:

A First-Class officer makes \$26.99 an hour times 2080 hour a year = \$56,136.00 divided by 12 months = \$4,678.00 per month. This would be the straight time monthly salary without overtime.

- 9.1.1 In the event of a shift change and/or rotation, the Employer shall provide a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours off, call-backs excluded as regular days off.
- 9.1.2 Exceptions: Emergencies beyond the Employer's control, or when the employee quits, fails to report for work, or is granted time off in writing by the Employer.
- 9.2 Each work shift shall include a thirty (30) minute meal period as near to the middle of the shift as possible and one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period each one-half (1/2) shift to be taken at the employee's discretion, but not sooner than one (1) hour from the start of the employee's assigned shift. Employees may be required to respond to emergency situations during meal and rest periods. A meal period missed at the direction of the Employer, which is not the result of an emergency situation beyond the Employer's control, shall be paid as overtime.
- 9.3 The shift schedule shall be determined by the Employer. The Employer shall give at least seven (7) calendar days notice prior to changing the employee's assigned shift. Said notice shall be posted on the department bulletin board showing the employee's shift, work days, and hours.
- 9.4 When presented with an emergency beyond his control, the Employer may alter the assigned work hours by giving prompt notification to the effected employees. The Employer shall not reschedule assigned work shifts for purposes of avoiding payment of overtime.
- 9.5 Employees may exchange shifts when unforeseen circumstances arise provided they first request and receive approval in writing from their immediate supervisor. Such exchange in shifts shall not, by itself, constitute a basis for entitlement to overtime compensation.
- 9.6 Overtime: All work performed in excess of the work day and/or work week as provided in Section 9.1 above, shall be compensated for at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate. Exception: The employee may, at his option, take equivalent time off on the basis of one and one-half (1-1/2) hour of compensatory time off for each one (1) hour of overtime worked. Compensatory time may accrue to a limit of eighty (80) hours, with any time in excess of eighty

- (80) hours paid at the applicable rate. Compensatory time will only be cashed out in the first pay period of the following months: March, June, September; and all remaining hours mandatorily cashed out the first pay period of December. Employees wishing to use compensatory time off will provide a seven (7) day notice, unless an emergency exists, in which case the Chief or designee may waive the seven (7) day notice.
- 9.6.1 All overtime shall be paid for in increments of one-quarter (1/4) hour with the major portion of one-quarter (1/4) hour being paid as one-quarter (1/4) hour.
- 9.6.2 There shall be no compounding of overtime.
- 9.7 Callback: An employee who is required to return to duty, or has been subpoenaed to testify in court relating to his assigned duties, after having completed his regular shift, and having been effectively released from duty, shall be paid, unless specified below, a minimum of two (2) hours at one and one-half (1-1/2) times his straight-time hourly rate of pay.
- 9.7.1 An employee who is required to return to work less than two (2) hours prior to the beginning of a regularly assigned shift shall receive one and one-half (1-1/2) times his regular straight-time hourly rate of pay for such actual time as occurs prior to his regular shift.
- 9.7.2 Callback Between Shifts: Employees shall be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one and one-half (1-1/2) times their regular straight-time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked during said callback.
- 9.7.3 Callback on Regularly Scheduled Days Off: Employees shall be guaranteed a minimum of four (4) hours pay at one and one-half (1-1/2) times their regular straight-time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked during said callback.
- 9.7.4 Callback During Vacation: Employees shall be guaranteed a minimum of six (6) hours pay at one and one-half (1-1/2) times their regular straight-time hourly rate of pay. Vacation period for callback purposes shall be defined as the period between the last hour of work of the shift prior to commencement of the employee's vacation, until the first (1st) hour of work of the employee's next shift following the vacation.

ARTICLE 10 - CLASSIFICATIONS - WAGE RATES - OTHER PROVISIONS

- 10.1 See attached Appendix A Civil Service Certified Personnel
- 10.2 See attached Appendix B Other Employees

(The above-mentioned Appendices are attached hereto and incorporated by this reference.

ARTICLE 11 - PAY ARRANGEMENTS

11.1 All employees shall be paid all monies earned by the end of their regular shift, no later than the last working day prior to the first (1st) and sixteenth (16th) of each month for preceding semi-monthly payroll period. There shall be no deductions other than required by law or authorized in writing by the Employee.

- 11.2 Each employee shall be entitled to an itemized statement of earnings and deductions, specifying his wage rate, hours paid, and other compensation payable to him as well as any and all deductions from his gross wages for the pay period.
- 11.3 Upon quitting or discharge, the Employer shall pay all monies due the employee no later than the pay period following such quitting or discharge.
- 11.4 The Employer agrees to implement a deferred compensation program which shall be available to members of the bargaining unit. The designated are I.C.M.A. and the Washington Department of Retirement System deferred compensation program. Should this plan terminate, or for any other reason become unavailable to members of the bargaining unit, a replacement shall be negotiated.

ARTICLE 12 - ANNUAL LEAVE

12.1 All regular employees shall accrue and be granted the following vacation and/or holiday accumulation, hereinafter referred to as annual leave, according to the following schedule:

Continuous Service	Vacation Days	Holiday Days
0 thru 84 months	10	11
85 thru 120 months	15	11
121 thru 180 months	18	11
181+ months	20	11

- 12.1.1 Regular part-time eligible employee's annual leave pay shall be on a pro-rata basis, based upon the employee's compensated hours in the previous month.
- 12.1.2 Prior to the completion of the Field Training Officer Program, annual leave may not be taken unless prior approval, in writing, is granted by Chief.
- 12.1.3 The following holidays are recognized as being those for which annual leave is granted:

New Year's Day
M. L. King Birthday
Presidents' Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day following Thanksgiving
Christmas Day
Floating Holiday (1)

- 12.1.4 Employees earn a full day of annual leave for their first (1st) month of employment if they are placed on the payroll on or before the fifteenth (15th) of the month and work continuously through the rest of the month. Terminating employees do not receive annual leave credit for the month in which they terminate unless they actually work continuously through the fifteenth (15th) of the month in which they terminate.
- 12.2 Given the nature of work performed by the Police Department, most employees in the Bargaining Unit cannot be permitted to take holidays on the day they fall. As a result, each such regular, full-time employee shall be credited with eighty-eight (88) hours, eleven (11) days of holiday time with pay effective January 1st annually. Said time must normally be taken during the calendar year or the leave time will lapse December 31st.

- 12.3 Though holiday time is credited in total at the beginning of the calendar year, it shall be earned at the rate of 7.33 hours per month. Employees entering or leaving City service during the calendar year will have their holiday time pro-rated accordingly. Those leaving City employment for any reason shall have the appropriate payment or deduction reflected in their final paycheck.
- 12.4 No employee shall receive payment for more than two-hundred and forty (240) hours of combined vacation and holiday leave at the time of termination or retirement. However, no employee shall lose accumulated leave time because his request for leave has been denied, unless reasonable opportunities for leave have been refused by the employee.
- 12.5 Annual leave is accrued at the previously stated rates in Section 12.1. However, only up to 240 hours of accrued annual leave will roll over from year to year. Should an employee be denied usage of annual leave (being denied in November and December does not apply) any requested leave, in excess of 240 hours, will be paid to the employee as of the last pay period in December of the given year.
- 12.6 The Employer will commence vacation scheduling during the month of December in the order of the employees' seniority. It is the employee's responsibility to schedule his or her vacation. Eligible employees must take at least one (1) block of five (5) consecutive days off per calendar year. Any vacation/annual leave usage scheduled during the remainder of the year and requested over twenty (20) calendar days in advance of the days off, shall be scheduled in the order of their request without regard to seniority and provided the Employer can maintain minimum staffing requirements. The Chief or his designee may waive the twenty (20) day advance notice provided the Employer can maintain sufficient staffing requirements. Such waiver will be considered on a case by case basis and will not establish precedent.
- 12.6.1 The vacation/annual leave schedule is a firm schedule and can only be changed by request of the employee and approval of the request by the Chief of Police, or by an emergency that might arise that would cause a vacation to be re-scheduled. In either case, the changes must be approved in writing by the City Administrator.
- 12.6.2 All requests for annual leave usage are subject to approval by the Chief of Police or his designee, but if a request is denied, the reasons for such denial shall be promptly communicated.
- 12.7 Any employee who by virtue of a defined leave is unable to utilize his scheduled annual leave shall not suffer a reduction in annual leave accrual, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the parties.

ARTICLE 13 - PARTIES RESPONSIBILITIES

- 13.1 The parties recognize that security and continuity of employment can result only when a spirit of harmony, cooperation and reasonable and fair compromise exists and to the accomplishment of that end, each party pledges itself to an honest observance of the terms of this Agreement and to the exercise of patience and understanding. All employees shall represent themselves and the Employer to the public in a manner which shall be courteous, efficient, and helpful.
- 13.2 The parties recognize the need to promote the efficiency of law enforcement; to maintain and increase individual productivity and quality of public service; to prevent interruptions of work and the interference with the efficient operation of the City; promote harmonious relations and establish

procedures for the orderly resolution of disputes and grievances; and serve the safety, health and welfare of the community.

ARTICLE 14 - RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION-INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE-

OASI

- 14.1 The Employer shall pay into the appropriate employees' retirement program, Industrial Insurance, and OASI, as required, at the prescribed rate, by law.
- 14.2 The bargaining unit member's pre-tax wages shall be reduced each month by the amounts paid on account of each member pursuant to sections 14.4 and 14.5. The parties agree that the contributions into the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust shall be made on behalf of all Regular Part-Time Employees, Regular Full-Time Employees, Probationary Employees and Temporary Labor (who receive compensation) at the designated amounts as stipulated in Article 14.4 and 14.5 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 14.3 In lieu of an identical amount of pre-tax wages of each bargaining unit member, the employer shall pay each month into the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust the below referenced amount on account of each bargaining unit member for each hour for which compensation is paid to him/her, but not to exceed one hundred and ninety (190) straight time hours for each month, with a maximum of two thousand eighty (2080) straight time hours per year. A compensable hour is to be considered all hours with the exception of overtime hours.
- 14.4 Effective January 1, 2010 One Dollar and Twenty Cents (\$1.20) per compensable hour for employees in Appendix A. Effective February 1, 2010 One Dollar and Sixty Cents (\$1.60) per compensable hour for employees in Appendix A Line Patrol Officers.
- 14.5 Effective January 1, 2010 One Dollar and Twenty Cents (\$1.20) per compensable hour for employees in Appendix B.

ARTICLE 15 - LIABILITY INSURANCE

15.1 Liability Insurance - The Employer agrees to either provide insurance coverage on behalf of the employees or provide liability defense for employees or a combination thereof, in order to reasonably protect and indemnify employees from liability to third (3rd) parties resulting from employees negligently performing duties within the scope of employment.

ARTICLE 16 - HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PROGRAMS

- 16.1 The Employer shall pay each month into the following employee health care benefit plans, on behalf of each member of the bargaining unit who was compensated for eighty (80) hours or more in the preceding month.
- 16.1.1 Medical Plan: Effective January 1, 2019 based on December 2018 hours, the Employer agrees to pay monthly contributions for medical insurance with 9-month disability waiver (\$11.40), dental and vision benefit Plans.

- 16.1.2 Medical Plan: Effective (Possibly January, if approved by Trust) February 1, 2019 based on December 2018 hours, Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust Medical Plan Z, (2019 contribution rate to be determined by November 2018. 2018 rate is \$1065.27).
- 16.1.2.1 Disability Waiver Plan: Effective January 1, 2019, Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust 9 Month Disability Waiver Plan, (2019 contribution rate to be determined by November 2018. 2018 rate is \$11.40).
- 16.1.3 Dental Plan: Effective January 1, 2019, Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust Dental Plan A, (2019 contribution rate to be determined by November 2018. 2018 rate is \$130.50).
- 16.1.4 Vision Plan: Effective January 1, 2019, Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust Vision Plan, (2019 contribution rate to be determined by November 2018. 2018 rate is \$14.90).
- 16.2 The Union agrees during the life of this Agreement that it will not request any additional benefits for any of the above-listed employee benefit plans, and the Employer agrees that during the life of this Agreement, they will pay any increase in contribution rates as required by the Trustees of the employee benefit trusts to maintain these benefits.
- 16.3 If the Employer is delinquent in payments, the Employer shall be liable for the payment of any claims incurred by employees or dependents during such delinquency.

ARTICLE 17 - LIFE - AD&D PLAN - SECTION 125 PLAN - VEBA III PLAN

- 17.1 Effective January 1, 1985, the Employer shall pay on account of each member of the bargaining unit the sum of two cents (\$.02) per hour for each hour for which compensation is paid to him, into Group Policy No. 16696-LTD, to provide Life-AD&D Insurance coverage for an eligible employee.
- 17.2 Effective January 1, 1991, the employer agrees to deduct the full monthly cost for each employee currently covered under the LEOFF II retirement program for Limited Term Disability coverage provided by the Washington State Council of LEOFF II Personnel Insurance Trust (underwritten by Standard Insurance Company) as a supplementary disability insurance. All monies deducted will be promptly remitted to the carrier as needed to provide coverage.
- 17.3 Effective January 1, 1995, the Employer agrees to provide a Section 125 Plan to employees to pay medical expenses and child care expenses from pre-tax dollars.
- 17.4 The Employer has established a Supplemental Medical account on behalf of each member of the bargaining unit. The benefit account shall be administered by the VEBA Trust for Public Service Employees in the State of Washington. The contribution to the VEBA Trust benefit accounts on behalf of each employee shall be calculated as follows: Beginning January 1997 and continuing through the life of this agreement a contribution amount equal to 1.5% of each employee's current salary.
- 17.5 The City will provide a \$750 VEBA contribution to each employee, first paycheck in January annually.
- 17.6 The Employer will pay for and maintain a group term life insurance policy for active duty officers of no less than \$100,000 for each officer. This policy is not portable and terminates

immediately when an employee is no longer working for the City of Selah

17.7 Employee Assistance Program (EAP): The Employer will establish an employee assistance program whereby any employee may self-nominate to attend confidential counseling sessions for themselves or any of their dependents. Additionally, the City commits to paying the related fees associated with the aforementioned sessions, up to three per year, per individual, per unrelated issue.

ARTICLE 18 - REMITTANCE FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

18.1 The total amount due for each calendar month for each of the employees benefit plans as set forth in Articles 16 and 17, shall be remitted in a lump sum not later than ten (10) business days after the last business day of such preceding month.

ARTICLE 19 - FRINGE BENEFIT BOOKLETS & SELF-PREMIUM PAYMENTS

- 19.1 Each employee has been provided a copy of this Labor Agreement and current copies of the various fringe benefit booklets named in Articles 16 and 17. It is the responsibility of the employee to read these fringe benefit booklets in order to familiarize himself with the various plans and determine when he will become eligible for each benefit. If an employee misplaces any of the plant booklets, he should contact the Local Union office for a replacement copy.
- 19.2 Certain fringe benefit plans permit self-premium payments for a given number of months, in the event the employee is not compensated the required number of hours for the Employer to pay the premium coverage. It is the employee's responsibility to immediately contact the Local, Union office to determine which of the benefits allow self-payments to continue the coverage for himself and family.

ARTICLE 20 - TRUST FUND DELINQUENCIES

- 20.1 In the event the Employer is delinquent in the payment of any contribution required by Articles 16 and 17, employees or the Union shall have the right (notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement) to take any legal or economic action they deem fit against the Employer to collect such delinquent amounts. In the event legal action is required to collect the Employer's contributions, then the Employer shall be liable for all costs and expenses of litigation, including reasonable attorney fees.
- 20.2 If the Employer is delinquent in payments, the Employer shall be liable for the payment of any claims incurred by employees or dependents during such delinquency.

ARTICLE 21 - ACCEPTANCE OF TRUSTS

21.1 The Employer hereby acknowledges that it has received true copies of the Northwest Teamsters Dental Trust, and the Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust, Negotiated Life Insurance Plan, and shall be considered a party thereto. The Employer further agrees that the Employer-Trustees named in said trusts, and their successors in trust are and shall be its representatives and consents to be bound by the actions and determinations of the trustees.

ARTICLE 22 - DISCIPLINE-DISCHARGE-SUSPENSION-WRITTEN WARNING NOTICE

22.1 If the Chief of Police or his designee believes there is just cause to discipline any employee, it shall be done in a manner that is least likely to embarrass the employee before other employees or the

public. Further, said discipline shall not violate the employee's rights as contained in this Agreement. Any employee, who is the subject of an investigation which may lead to disciplinary action, shall be informed of the nature of the charge and offered an opportunity to have a representative present during questioning. The parties understand that the Employer is obligated to notify the employee of an investigation at the time of questioning.

- 22.2 The parties to this Agreement recognize the principal of progressive discipline. The Employer may discharge or suspend an employee for just cause but no employee shall be discharged or suspended unless a written warning notice shall previously have been given to such employee and copy to the Union of the complaint against him concerning his work or conduct within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of such violation, or fourteen (14) calendar days from the date such violation became known to the Employer. Otherwise, such written warning notice shall be null and void. No such written warning notice shall be necessary if the cause for discharge or suspension is dishonesty, drinking related to his employment, illegal possession and/or use of federally-designated drug abuse items, or such other misconduct which is as serious in nature as to justify discharge without a written warning notice. A copy of any written warning, suspension, or discharge notice shall be sent to the Union at the time it is given to the employee. Warning notices shall remain in an employee's file either six (6) twelve (12) or eighteen (18) months depending on the severity of the violation.
- 22.3 Any employee who is subject to discharge, suspension, or written warning notice, may seek appeal through either of the following procedures. At the employee's option, an appeal can be made through the contract Grievance Procedure as outlined in Article 23, or through the Selah Civil Service Commission. The employee's decision of appeal procedure shall be in written form to the appropriate party within ten (10) calendar days and shall be final and binding on all parties. The employee's choice of appeal procedure shall be irrevocable.
- 22.3.1 Should any employee option to appeal a disciplinary action through the Selah Civil Service Commission, the matter shall be handled in accordance with applicable procedures as contained in the rules and regulations of the Selah Civil Service Commission. Further, any employee found by the Civil Service Commission to have been unjustly disciplined shall be made whole for any lost compensation, including accrued benefits.
- 22.3.2 Should any employee option to appeal a disciplinary action through other provisions of this Agreement's Grievance Procedure, the matter shall be handled in accordance with Section 23.3 and subsequent provisions of this Agreement. Any such appeal shall be presented to the Employer within ten (10) calendar days, exclusive of holidays, after the discharge, suspension or written warning notice, and if not presented within such period, the right of protest shall be waived

ARTICLE 23 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- 23.1 "Grievance" as used herein shall mean any dispute between the Employer and his employee's and/or the Union.
- 23.2 STEP I: An employee having a concern which he feels could be a grievance shall bring up the matter within fourteen (14) calendar days of the concern giving rise to the grievance, or fourteen (14) calendar days from the time such matter became known, or should have become known to the employee, or it shall be deemed waived. The employee is to first (1st) discuss the matter with his immediate

supervisor, to provide an opportunity for clarification and/or appropriate adjustment, consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The employee shall have the option of being accompanied by his Union representative if he feels that it is necessary.

- 23.3 STEP II: If it is determined a grievance does exist and it is not resolved within the fourteen (14) calendar days of Step I, the grievance shall be reduced to writing and an attempt will be made to resolve the grievance with the Chief of Police, the grievant(s) and the Union, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the conclusion of Step I. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved within the additional fourteen (14) calendar days, then,
- 23.4 STEP III: The grievance shall be referred to a committee consisting of four (4) members, two (2) appointed by the Mayor and two (2) appointed by the Union. Such committee shall attempt to reach a majority decision on such dispute or grievance. If such committee fails to reach a majority decision on such dispute or grievance submitted to it within fourteen (14) calendar days, either party shall have the right to submit the dispute or grievance to arbitration.
- 23.5 STEP IV: If the matter is submitted to arbitration the parties shall select an impartial arbitrator within fourteen (14) calendar days after the request is made to arbitrate. If the parties fail to agree within this period upon an arbitrator who is able and willing to serve, either party may, within seven (7) calendar days thereafter request the Public Employees Relations Commission to submit a list of seven (7) disinterested persons who are qualified and willing to act as an impartial arbitrator. From that list, within seven (7) calendar days after its receipt, the parties shall meet, whereupon the aggrieved party shall strike the first (1st) name, then each will alternately strike one (1) of the names submitted until only one name remains. The person whose name remains shall be selected as the sole arbitrator.
- 23.6 The arbitrator shall commence hearings within a reasonable period of time after his selection and shall render his award in writing within thirty (30) calendar days. The award of the arbitrator, together with his written findings and conclusions shall be final and binding upon the parties to this Agreement and upon the complaining employee or employees, if any. The Arbitrator is not vested with the power to change, alter, or modify this Agreement in any of its parts.
- 23.7 The arbitrator's fees and expenses, the cost of any hearing room, shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Union. All other costs and expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them.
- 23.8 The Employer and the Union agree to comply with the time limitations set forth above and either party shall have the right to insist that the time limitations be complied with, provided, however, said time limitations may be waived by mutual agreement, but in no event shall failure to comply with the above time limits deprive the arbitrator of authority to decide the grievance.

ARTICLE 24 - UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT

- 24.1 The Employer shall furnish employees with uniforms and equipment required to perform their assigned duties, including personal side arms. Initial issue of uniforms shall be provided by the Employer to employees, excluding detectives, (detectives shall receive a \$225 yearly clothing allowance in lieu of uniforms) for the following:
- 1-Identification card with photo
- 1-Identification ID holder

- 1-Selah Police Badge
- 3-Bratwear jumpsuits (choice of winter or summer)
- 1-Duty pants (formal dress occasions)
- 1-Short sleeve shirt (formal dress occasions)
- 1-Tie
- 1-Tie bar
- 1-Threat Level IIIA body armor
- 1-Out duty belt (choice of Sam Browne or Velcro)
- 1-Inner duty belt (choice of Sam Browne or Velcro)
- 1-Duty holster
- 4-Belt keepers
- 1-Double mag pouch
- 1-Glove pouch
- 1-Radio holder
- 1-Portable radio (Motorola or Kenwood)
- 1-Pepper spray holder
- 1-ASP expandable baton
- 1-ASP baton holder
- 1-Handcuff case (choice of single or double)
- 2-Handcuff sets
- 1-Tuffy key holder
- 1-M26 taser
- 1-M26 taser holder
- 1-M16 patrol rifle
- 1-Stinger flashlight
- 1-Stinger flashlight holder
- 1-SL20 flashlight (full size)

Any special or custom modifications would be at the officers' expense. Patches, badges (hard & cloth) and other equipment as deemed appropriate. Any item issued to one officer will be issued to all unless there is a specific reason or requirement to be met (i.e. bike patrol uniforms), as determined by the department, will be issued to qualified personnel.

- 24.1.1 All protective clothing and safety equipment required of employees in the performance of their duties shall be purchased by and remain the property of the Employer. Upon quitting or discharge, all property of the Employer shall be returned to the Chief of Police or his designee.
- 24.2 The Employer agrees to purchase and/or replace any uniforms and/or equipment specified in Section 24.1 above, at no cost to the employee. The determination as to serviceability shall be made by the Chief of Police or his designee.
- 24.3 The Employer agrees to provide for the cleaning and repair of uniforms and/or equipment specified in Section 24.1 above. Upon initial hire and January each year thereafter, the Employer agrees to provide \$150 per employee for footgear. Additionally, the Employer will replace footwear damaged in the line of duty. (Police clerks excluded).

^{*} for Department issue weapon only (see Section 24.4 below)

- 24.3.1 It shall be the responsibility of each employee to maintain a presentable appearance at all times when on duty.
- 24.4 <u>Handguns</u>: The Department shall issue, and each Officer shall carry as their duty firearm a Department owned: .45 caliber Glock model 21 or 21SF equipped with tru-glo night sights. Officers who currently carry their own .45 caliber Glock 21 or 21SF may continue to do so. An exception to this requirement would be an Officer's medical condition, as diagnosed by a doctor, and where as such diagnosis, it is the doctor's opinion that the Officer is precluded from using the Department owned .45 caliber Model 21 or 21SF but would permit the use of another firearm. The Chief may grant an exception to this requirement on a case by case basis.

ARTICLE 25 - EDUCATIONAL AND LONGEVITY INCENTIVE

25.1 It is agreed between the parties that education, when related to the job function, has intrinsic value to the employee and to the community in the performance of his or her service. Any regular full-time employee shall be eligible for and receive education incentive pay for college degrees earned while in service as an employee with the City of Selah. Any regular full-time employee who obtains a degree in Police Science or any other mutually agreed to field shall receive pay at the following scale:

Education Advancement	Additional Compensation per month
AA Degree	\$25.00
BA Degree	\$50.00
MA Degree	\$75.00

- 25.2 In no event will more than one (1) allotment of educational incentive pay be received by any one (1) employee.
- 25.3 Payment of said Educational Incentive Pay shall be made with the employee's regular pay check and will commence after complete reimbursement of employee tuition expense has been accounted for (the requirement that the eligibility requirement be met while in the employee of the City of Selah shall apply only to employees hired after January 1, 1998.)
- 25.4 Longevity Incentive Pay: Each full-time employee of the bargaining unit shall receive longevity pay, based upon the schedule below as a separate check, less standard deductions. Time served shall include all time worked for the Employer as part of the Police or City of Selah. Longevity pay will be issued the Monday prior to Thanksgiving Day and it will be calculated on the gross annual salary as of November 15th of each year. After an employee has worked for the City for five (5) years and they separate employment for any reason, they will receive pro-rated longevity pay.

Length of Service:	Incentive Pay
0 to 60 months of service	0
61 to 120 months of service	2% of gross non-overtime salary
120 to 240 months of service	5% of gross non-overtime salary
240 months of service and over	7% of gross non-overtime salary

ARTICLE 26 UNION ACTIVITY

- 26.1 Non-Discrimination: No employee shall be unlawfully discriminated against for upholding lawful Union principles. Any employee who works under the instructions of the Union or who serves on a committee shall not lose his job or be discriminated against for this reason, provided such activities do not interfere with the employee's duties. No employee shall suffer a reduction in wages or more favorable working conditions due to the signing of this Agreement.
- 26.2 Union Investigative and Visitation Privileges: The Business Representative of the Union, with the permission of the department head or his designee, may visit the work location of employees at any reasonable time and location for the purpose of investigating grievances. Such representative shall limit his activities during such investigations to matters relating to this Agreement; provided however, he shall not interfere with the operation of normal routine of any department.
- 26.3 Bulletin Board: The Employer agrees to provide suitable space to be used as a Union bulletin board. Posting by the Union on such board is to be confined to official business of the Union.

ARTICLE 27 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 27.1 Medical Exams: Any physical examination, T.B. skin test, X-rays, required by the Employer shall be taken on Employer time whenever practical, and shall be paid by the Employer, provided said services are by a physician or institution specified by the Employer.
- 27.2 Standards: The Union recognizes the right of the Employer to establish such reasonable Employer rules as he may deem necessary, provided that such rules are not in conflict with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Employees shall be made aware of such rules and are to be applied equally to all employees of the Employer.
- 27.3 Non-Discrimination: The Employer and the Union agree not to discriminate against any individual with respect to his hiring, compensation, terms or conditions of employment because of such individual's race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, or physical handicap to the extent provided by law, nor will they limit, segregate or classify employees in any way to deprive any individual employee of employment opportunities because of his race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, or physical handicap.
- 27.4 Training: The employee shall continue to complete professional training and re-qualification requirements of the Employer, and as may be required by State regulations. The Employer will pay the actual training, travel, per diem. The per diem allowance is 14 breakfast, 16 lunch, and 25 dinner. We reserve the right to unilaterally increase these amounts and regular pay when an employee attends breathalyzer, dispatch, or other law enforcement training classes authorized or required by the Chief of Police, and such time will not be charged to his accrued leave. The Employer will reasonably attempt to schedule such mandatory training sessions for the on-duty time when practical. Training conducted within Yakima County shall not entitle an employee to reimbursement for travel and lodging expenses. For use of an employee's personal vehicle, the City shall reimburse the employee at the current Internal Revenue Service mileage rate at the time travel expense is incurred.
- 27.5 Gender: Where masculine gender has been used in any provision of this Agreement, it is used

solely for the purpose of illustration and shall not in any way be used to designate the sex of the employee eligible for any position, classification, or the benefits provided in this Agreement.

27.6 Only employees who are members of the bargaining unit shall perform work of the bargaining unit, except in the case of an emergency beyond the Employer's control, for the purpose of instruction, training, or to assist in the handling of special events.

ARTICLE 28 - PERSONNEL FILES

- 28.1 Employee(s) shall have the right to review material in their personnel files maintained in the Employer's Personnel Office during regular business hours. The employee may have a representative of the Union accompany him if so desired. Upon request, copies of documents in the personnel file shall be provided to the employee.
- 28.2 The personnel file will contain all evaluation reports that have been completed by an authorized administrator, and such other material that would assist in evaluating the employee.
- 28.3 Materials judged by the employee to be negative and/or derogatory may be answered by the employee in writing. Such written response shall be attached to the material in question and become a part of the personnel file.
- 28.4 Personnel files are the property of the Employer. The Employer agrees that the contents of the personnel files, including the personal photographs, shall be confidential and shall restrict the use of information in the files to official use by the Employer.
- 28.5 After three (3) years, an employee may request that derogatory material other than yearly evaluations be expunged from his file. Decisions on such request shall be made by the Chief of Police or his designee in consultation with the Union.

ARTICLE 29 - NO STRIKE - NO LOCK OUT

29.1 Strikes, slowdowns, work stoppages, or any other interference with the work by the employees are prohibited. The Employer may discharge and/or discipline any employee who violates this section. No employee shall be entitled to any pay and/or benefits for the period in which he/she is engaged in any strike, slowdowns, work stoppages or other interference with work. Nothing contained herein shall preclude the Employer from obtaining judicial restraint and damages in the event of a violation of this Article. No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the Employer.

ARTICLE 30 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

30.1 If any Article or Section of the Agreement or any Appendixes thereto should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Agreement or any Appendixes thereto shall continue in full force and effect. The Article or Section held invalid shall be modified as required by law or the tribunal of competent jurisdiction or shall be re-negotiated for the purpose of an adequate replacement. If such negotiations shall not result in mutually satisfactory agreement, the grievance procedure outlined in this Agreement shall be applicable.

ARTICLE 31 - TERM OF AGREEMENT

31.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from January 1, 2019 and shall remain in full force and effect through December 31, 2023. Either party may, upon one hundred sixty (160) calendar days' notice prior to the date of expiration, give notice to terminate or amend to the other party. In the event only notice to amend is given, the Agreement shall remain in effect while the parties negotiate amendments.

By Sharp Raymond

Mayor

Date October 23, 2018

ATTEST:

By City Supervisor, CLERK TREASURER

Date 10/23/18

SIGNED FOR THE UNION: TEAMSTERS LOCAL NO.760

By Kenned J. Crouch
Secretary Treasurer

Date 16.18.18

ORIGINAL

APPENDIX "A" - LINE/PATROL OFFICERS

ARTICLE 1A - DEFINITIONS OF LINE/PATROL OFFICERS

1.A.1 A Commissioned Officer is one who is working and engaged in, limited to, activity which requires work outside the Selah Police facility. He shall be a commissioned line officer.

ARTICLE 2A - CLASSIFICATIONS - WAGE RATES - OTHER PROVISIONS

2.A.1 The following salary schedule for Line/Patrol Officers shall be effective January 1, 2014:

2019	2% increase above the 2018 wage rates.
2020	2% increase above the 2019 wage rates.
2021	2% increase above the 2020 wage rates.
2022	2% increase above the 2021 wage rates.
2023	2% increase above the 2022 wage rates.

	Monthly Salaries						
Classification	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023		
Sergeant	\$ 7,102	\$ 7,244	\$ 7,389	\$ 7,537	\$ 7,688		
Detective	\$ 6,392	\$ 6,520	\$ 6,650	\$ 6,783	\$ 6,919		
MPO	\$ 6,176	\$ 6,300	\$ 6,426	\$ 6,554	\$ 6,685		
First Class	\$ 5,574	\$ 5,686	\$ 5,800	\$ 5,915	\$ 6,034		
Second Class	\$ 5,008	\$ 5,108	\$ 5,211	\$ 5,315	\$ 5,421		
Third Class	\$ 4,713	\$ 4,808	\$ 4,904	\$ 5,002	\$ 5,102		
Probationary	\$ 4,163	\$ 4,246	\$ 4,331	\$ 4,417	\$ 4,506		

2.A.2 Beginning January 1, 2014 all Sergeants will be compensated at fifteen percent (15%) above the MPO wage rate. Beginning January 1, 2019, the Detective will be compensated at 3.5 percent above the MPO wage rate.

APPENDIX "B" - MISCELLANEOUS POLICE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES

ARTICLE 1B - DEFINITION OF DISPATCH AND CLERICAL/MATRON EMPLOYEES

1.B.1 A Miscellaneous employee is one who is working and engaged in, but not limited to, activity which requires work primarily within the Selah Police Facility. Said employee need not necessarily be civil service certified.

ARTICLE 2B - CLASSIFICATIONS - WAGE RATES - OTHER PROVISIONS

2.B.1 The following salary schedule for Miscellaneous Police Department employees shall be effective January 1, 2019.

2019	2% increase above the 2018 wage rates.
2020	2% increase above the 2019 wage rates.
2021	2% increase above the 2020 wage rates.
2022	2% increase above the 2021 wage rates.
2023	2% increase above the 2022 wage rates.

	Monthly Salaries				
Classification	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023
ACO/CSO I	\$ 4,713	\$ 4,808	\$ 4,904	\$ 5,002	\$ 5,102
ACO/CSO II	\$ 4,163	\$ 4,246	\$ 4,331	\$ 4,417	\$ 4,506

Police Clerk I	\$ 4,546	\$ 4,637	\$ 4,730	\$ 4,824	\$ 4,921
Police Clerk II	\$ 4,012	\$ 4,092	\$ 4,174	\$ 4,257	\$ 4,342
Probationary Clerk	\$ 3,263	\$ 3,328	\$ 3,395	\$ 3,463	\$ 3,532

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF SELAH AND

ORIGINAL

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION #760

This memorandum shall amend the current collective bargaining agreement of the City of Selah Police Department.

Article 2 Recognition shall be amended to include the Police Lieutenant and Police Chief in the recognition clause 2.1.

The additional Articles that shall apply to these positions shall be Article 3 Union Security and Dues Check-off, Article 14 Retirement Contribution-Industrial Accident Insurance, and Article 23 Grievance and Arbitration Procedure.

The Grievance procedure may only be accessed for suspension and termination disputes.

The Lieutenant and Chief shall have no voting rights on the collective bargaining agreement.

All other benefits and working conditions shall be as provided for by The City of Selah policy and procedure manual and or City ordinance.

Signed this 23rd day of October , 2018.

Sherry Raymond, Mayor

City of Selah

Leonard Crouch, Secretary Treasurer

Teamsters Local 760 10.18.19

(Continuation of MOU originally signed 3.11.14)

Memorandum of Understanding By and Between Teamsters Local Union No. 760 And The City of Selah



The City and the Union have mutually agreed to create and establish a policy for catastrophic leave to allow the employees of the City of Selah to donate leave to fellow employees with a catastrophic illness or injury. Below is the agreed upon language:

Policy for Catastrophic Leave/ Illness

Sick Leave/Annual Leave Sharing Program for Catastrophic Illness: A leave contribution program is established to permit employees of the City of Selah to transfer a specified amount of accumulated leave (vacation leave and sick leave) to another employee of the City of Selah. The recipient employee must have an extraordinary or serious illness or injury; have depleted or shortly will deplete all leave reserves, (vacation leave, sick leave; and not be eligible for industrial insurance benefits. The donating employee may not request a transferred amount that would result in their leave balance falling below ten (10) days. Unused leave is returned to the donating employees on a pro-rata basis. This provision shall be administered by City Hall. Leave time shall not be transferred without a written request signed by the donating employee, on such a form as shall be provided by the City Hall.

Dated this 23 -d	day of	October	, 2018.
	_ day or _	0 0.	 , 2016.

SIGNED FOR THE CITY: MUNICIPALITY OF SELAH

SIGNED FOR THE UNION: TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 760

By Shary Roughord By Zeonard Good Secretary-Treasurer 10.18.18

(Continuation of MOU originally signed 3.11.14)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF SELAH AND TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION #760



This Memorandum of Understanding shall serve to amend the current Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Selah and the Police Department as follows:

- 1. Article 2, Recognition, shall be amended to include the Police Chief and Deputy Chief in the recognition clause 2.1.
- 2. It is agreed and understood, however, that although the Deputy Chief and Police Chief are recognized as part of the bargaining unit under clause 2.1, not all provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement will apply to the Deputy Chief and Police Chief. The Articles that shall apply to these positions are:

Articles that shall apply to these positions are: Article 3 Union Security and Dues Check-off; Article 14 Retirement Contribution-Industrial Accident Insurance a. Wage Rates: Chief; \$_____per month (1/1/2019). Current Police Chief promoted to position April 16, 2012. Deputy Chief \$_____ per month (1/1/2019). Position currently vacant. Both positions are covered for pension contributions effective April 16, 2012. See MOU Appendix "A" Job Descriptions. b. Pension Contribution Rate: \$1.60 per compensable hour, per 14.4 - Line Patrol Officers. 3. The Deputy Chief and Police Chief shall have no voting rights under the Collective Bargaining Agreement. All other benefits and conditions of work applicable to the Deputy Chief and Police Chief shall be as provided for under the City of Selah's personnel policies, Civil Service and any applicable ordinance. Leonard Crouch, Secretary/Treasurer Sherry Raymond, Mayor City of Selah Teamsters Local 760 (0.18.19) (Continuation of MOU originally signed 1.21.14)

Selah Police Department Memorandum of Understanding

Appendix "A", Job Descriptions.

Class Title: POLICE CHIEF

Department: Police

Date: 4/25/00

Union: Exempt

Location: Police Department

GENERAL PURPOSE

Performs a variety of complex administrative, supervisory and professional work in planning, coordinating and directing the activities of the Police Department.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED:

Works under the general guidance and direction of the Mayor and City Supervisor.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED

Exercises supervision over all police department staff directly or through subordinate supervisors.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Plans, coordinates, supervises and evaluates police department operations.

Develops policies and procedures for the Department in order to implement directives from the Mayor and City Supervisor.

Plans and implements a law enforcement program for the City in order to better carry out the policies and goals of the Mayor and City Supervisor; reviews Department performance and effectiveness, formulates programs or policies to alleviate deficiencies.

Coordinates the information gathered and work accomplished by various officers; assigns officers to special investigations as the needs arise for their specific skills.

Assures that personnel are assign to shifts or working units which provide optimum effectiveness in terms of current situations and circumstances governing deployment.

Evaluates evidence, witnesses, and suspects in criminal cases to correlate all aspects and to assess for trends, similarities, or for associations with other cases.

Supervises and coordinates the preparation and presentation of an annual budget for the Department; directs the implementation of the department's budget; plans for and reviews specifications for new or replaced equipment.

Directs the development and maintenance of systems, records and legal documents that provide for the proper evaluation, control and documentation of police department operations.

Trains and develops Department personnel.

Handles grievances, maintains Departmental discipline and the conduct and general behavior of assigned personnel.

Prepares and submits periodic reports to Mayor and City Supervisor regarding the Department's activities, and prepares a variety of other reports as appropriate.

Meets with elected or appointed officials, other law enforcement officials, community and business representatives and the public on all aspects of the Department's activities.

Attends conferences and meetings to keep abreast of current trends in the field; represents the City Police Department in a variety of local, county, state and other meetings.

Cooperates with County, State and Federal law enforcement officers as appropriate where activities of the police department are involved.

Ensures that laws and ordinances are enforced and that the public peace and safety is maintained.

PERIPHERAL DUTIES

Directs investigation of major crime scenes.

Performs the duties of subordinate personnel as needed.

Analyzes and recommends improvements to equipment and facilities, as needed.

DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:

- (A) Graduation from a college or university with a bachelor's degree in police science, law enforcement, criminal justice, public administration or a closely related field;
- (B) Seven (7) years of experience in police work, three years of which must have been equivalent to police sergeant or higher, and
- (C) Completion of the basic law enforcement training academy or equivalent, or

(D) An equivalent combination of education and experience.

NECESSARY KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES:

- (A) Thorough knowledge of modern law enforcement principles, procedures, techniques, and equipment; Considerable knowledge of applicable laws, ordinances, and department rules and regulations;
- (B) Skill in the use of the tools and equipment listed below.
- (C) Ability to train and supervise subordinate personnel; Ability to perform work requiring good physical condition; Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing; Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with subordinates, peers and supervisors; Ability to exercise sound judgment in evaluating situations and in making decisions; Ability to give verbal and written instructions; Ability to meet the special requirements listed below;

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS:

- (A) Must possess, or be able to obtain by time of hire, a valid State Driver's License without record of suspension or revocation in any state;
- (B) Ability to meet Department's physical standards;
- (C) Basic law enforcement training certification or equivalent.

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Police car, police radio, radar gun, handgun and other weapons as required, side-handle baton, handcuffs, breathalyzer, pager, first aid equipment, personal computer including word processing software.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to stand; walk; use hands to finger, handle, or operate objects, controls, or tools listed above; reach with hands and arms; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl; and taste or smell.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move more than 100 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee frequently works in outside weather conditions. The employee occasionally works near moving mechanical parts; in high, precarious places; and with explosives and is occasionally exposed to wet and/or humid conditions, fumes or airborne particles, toxic or caustic chemicals, extreme cold, extreme heat, and vibration.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate.

SELECTION GUIDELINES

Formal application, rating of education and experience; oral interview and reference check; job related tests may be required.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change.

Approval:	Approval:	
Supervisor		Appointing Authority
Effective Date:	Revision History:	
	- X	

POL-04.5.ATTACHMENT (Lieutenant Job Description)

Reports to: Chief

Definition: Under the general direction of the Chief of Police, Police Lieutenants manage one or more operational, administrative or support services work units of the Police Department. Police Lieutenants shall be administrative and operational equivalent of the Assistant Chief of Police and is ranked above all other police department personnel except the Chief of Police. Police

Lieutenants shall automatically assume control of the administrative and operational control of the police department in the Chief's absence. Police Lieutenants shall serve at the pleasure of the Chief of Police and may be removed for any reason, including a reorganization of the department, resulting in the elimination of the position. If removed, the person vacating the position will revert to his or her previous rank. Police Lieutenants shall be classified as an executive position as defined under WAC 296.128.510 and RCW 49.46.010 (5) (c).

Duties:

- In addition to being able to perform the duties of a Police Officer and Sergeant the Lieutenant plans, organizes and directs the activities of his/her assigned unit within guidelines established by applicable laws, regulations, directives and the Chief of Police.
- Monitors the efficiency and effectiveness of assigned unit using all available information and data; periodically reports to the Chief of Police, both verbally and in writing, recommending changes when warranted.
 - 3. Makes effective use of subordinates through appropriate delegation of tasks, duties, and responsibilities; periodically reviews and audits the work of subordinates and takes corrective action when required; requires accountability of subordinates; identifies training needs and provides appropriate training opportunities; inspects personnel and equipment to ensure operational readiness.

DATE: 6-18-2012 PAGE 2 OF 5

CANCELS: APPROVED BY: CHIEF RICHARD HAYES

POL-04.5.ATTACHMENT (Lieutenant Job Description)

- Resolves citizen complaints and investigates incidents of alleged employee misconduct; prepares investigative reports; recommends appropriate disciplinary action to the Chief of Police.
 - 5. Provides appropriate information to the public and the news media regarding major crimes and incidents, on-going investigations, and department programs, policies and procedures.
- 6. Actively promotes and reinforces the goals, values and objectives of the department and of the Chief of Police with the citizens and subordinates; creates a positive, constructive work atmosphere; promotes harmonious working relations among subordinates and between various department units and personnel; facilitates and manages organizational change.
- Participates in the personnel selection process; makes recommendations on appointments, promotions, transfers and disciplinary actions.

- Oversees and coordinates the activities of specialized units and volunteer groups within his or her area of responsibility.
- 10. Coordinates activities of his or her personnel with the activities of other units and agencies to ensure efficiency or operations; communicates regularly with counterparts in other units and agencies; assists other units in the furtherance of department goals and objectives.
- Ensures that equipment and supplies necessary for the operation of his or her unit are available; maintains inventory and control; recommends purchases and prepares or oversees the preparation of orders.

DATE: 6-18-2012 PAGE 3 OF 5

CANCELS: APPROVED BY: CHIEF RICHARD HAYES

POL-04.5.ATTACHMENT (Lieutenant Job Description)

- 12. Conducts research and prepares narrative and statistical reports regarding proposed changes in department operations or policy; prepares and submits drafts of policy and procedure for review by the Chief of Police; prepares memos and correspondence on a wide variety of topics.
- 13. Maintains current knowledge of trends, practices, laws and legal decisions affecting his or her area of responsibility and recommends necessary changes in department policy and procedure to the Chief of Police.
- 14. Represents the department and the Chief of Police on various panels and committees, and at special functions and ceremonies; participates in community organizations when the image or interests of the department would be advanced.
- Monitors activities of subordinates at critical incidents and assumes direct control when circumstances require.
- Occasionally assumes the duties and responsibilities of the Chief of Police or subordinates in their absence.
 - 17. Oversees the activities of specialized units, such as traffic, vice, organized crime and volunteer groups within his or her area of responsibility.
- 18. Conducts independent audits (twice a year), of evidence, found property and other property that is owned, borrowed or rented by the department.
- 19. Prepares performance evaluation reports on subordinate personnel and reviews those evaluations prepared by first line supervisors on their subordinates.

20. Performs other duties as required or directed.

DATE: 6-18-2012

PAGE 4 OF 5

CANCELS:

APPROVED BY: CHIEF RICHARD HAYES

POL-04.5.ATTACHMENT (Lieutenant Job Description)

Major Worker Characteristics:

Possess considerable knowledge of modern police methods and techniques, State, Federal and City laws and ordinances, and City and Department policies and procedures; ability to work in a variety of settings, including both office and field work.

Possess the ability to communicate clearly and effectively, both verbally and in writing with employees, members of the public representing diverse education and background, and with officials at all levels of government.

Demonstrate the knowledge of and adherence to a high standard of ethics.

Be innovative and flexible in approach and duties, and possess ability to readily adapt to changing community and department needs.

Possess the ability to make informative and persuasive presentations to individuals and groups, conduct public meetings, and participate in public forums.

Possess tact, diplomacy, and the ability to meet and deal effectively with individuals, groups and organizations representing a wide diversity of ethnicities, cultures, opinions and beliefs.

Unusual Working Conditions:

Working conditions may include: rotating shift assignments, night hours, call-back on short notice, and working on weekends and holidays; exposure to all of the hazards and conditions associated with the duties and responsibilities of a general authority law enforcement officer; stress associated with the necessity to make decisions affecting the safety of personnel and the public with little or no time for reflection or consultation; overtime work caused by incidents in progress or the necessity to meet critical deadlines.

DATE: 6-18-2012

PAGE 5 OF 5

CANCELS:

APPROVED BY: CHIEF RICHARD HAYES

POL-04.5.ATTACHMENT (Lieutenant Job Description)

Licenses, Registrations and Certificates:

Must possess a valid Washington State Driver's License. Must obtain a certificate of successful completion of the Washington State Criminal Justice Training Commission Mid-management Course.

Minimum Class Requirements: Must be currently serving, and have served for a minimum of three consecutive years (including probation), in the classification of Police Sergeant on the Selah Police Department. Must not have had any disciplinary action resulting in removal, suspension, demotion or discharge within the pervious three years.